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|. Meeting Agenda for 2025 Annual Shareholders' Meeting
of Tatwan Business Bank Co., Ltd.

Meeting Time: 9:00 a.m. on Friday, June 20, 2025

Venue: Auditorium, 17F., No. 30, Tacheng St., Datong Dist., Taipei City
Attendance: (Please refer to the register of attendance)

Chairman: Chairman, Chia-Hsiang Lee

1. Report the total number of shares represented by shareholders
present at the meeting and call the meeting to order

2. Chairman Remarks

3. Bank Reports
1) The Bank’s 2024 Operating Report.
2) The Audit Committee's Review Report on the 2024 financial
statements of the Bank.

3) Report on the distribution of remunerations for employees and
Directors of the Bank in 2024

4. Proposals
1) Adoption of the 2024 operating report and financial statements
of the Bank.
2) Adoption of the 2024 earnings distribution from the final
accounts of the Bank.

5. Discussion
1) Resolution to carry out a capital increase via transferred
earnings in accordance with the earnings distribution of stock
dividends for 2024.
2) Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Bank.
3) Proposal for lifting the non-competition restriction for the
Directors of the Board.

6. Questions and Motions

7. Adjournment



I1. Bank Reports
Report 1
Explanation: The Bank’s 2024 Operating Report
Description: Please refer to Page 7 ~ 16 of this Handbook for the Bank’s
2024 Operating Report.

Resolution:

Report 2

Explanation: The Audit Committee's Review Report on the 2024 financial
statements of the Bank

Description: Please refer to Page 3 ~ 4 of this Handbook for the Audit
Committee's Review Report.

Resolution:



Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd.
Audit committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has compiled and prepared Taiwan Business
Bank’s Financial Statements, business report for the fiscal year of 2024.
The financial statements have been audited by Ms. Feng-Hui Lee and
Ms.Pei-Ju Tsai, the certified public accountants of KPMG. '

The Audit Committee has also examined the said statements and reports
delivered by the Board of Directors and found that its contents were in
conformity with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and
Article 215 of the Company Act. We hereby present the subject report
for your review.

Submitted to:

2025 General Shareholders’ Meeting of Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd.

Audit Committee of Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd.
Independent Director

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Republic of China, February 21, 2025




Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd.
Audit committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the 2024 profit distribution table.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the aforementioned Proposal in
accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and
Article 219 of the Company Act, and confirmed its consistency with

related laws and rules. The Audit Committee hereby provides the said

audit report.
Submitted to:

2025 General Shareholders’ Meeting of Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd.

Audit Committee of Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd.

Independent Director \Z7/-v_>£_
) i\:m/
Independent Director ></VV\ — AN w

”/”é (e
Independent Director gk““" Hmw - WVJ

Independent Director M %g_) &ég

Republic of China, Aprit 16, 2025

Independent Director




Report 3

Explanation: Report on the distribution of remunerations for employees
and Directors of the Bank in 2024

Description:

1. Pursuant to Article 235-1 of the Company Act, the distribution
was resolved at the 4th meeting of the 6th Remuneration
Committee and the 8th meeting of the 17th Board of Directors of
the Bank.

2. Remunerations for employees and Directors in 2024 are
distributed in cash as follows:

(1) Employee remuneration (6%): NT$901,323,150.

(2) Director remuneration (0.6%): NT$90,132,315.
The above proposed distribution of remunerations for
employees and Directors has been included in the said year's
expenses in accordance with the regulations.

Resolution:



[11. Proposals
Proposal 1

Explanation:

(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Adoption of the 2024 operating report and financial

statements of the Bank

Description: The 2024 financial statements (individual and consolidated

Resolution:

financial statements) of the Bank: balance sheet,
consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of
changes in equity, and statement of cash flow have been
audited by Feng-Hui Lee and Pei-Ju Tsai, CPA of KPMG.
Together with the operating report, the financial statements
have been audited by the Bank's Audit Committee and
passed by the resolution of the Board meeting (please refer
to Page 7 ~ 32 of this Handbook).



Taiwan Business Bank Co., Ltd.

2024 Operating Report

In the first half of 2024, the cumulative effects of significant interest rate hikes by
major central banks in the U.S. and Europe continued to materialize. As the global
manufacturing and service industries accelerated their recovery, the rigidity of service-
sector inflation led some central banks in the U.S. and other countries to delay the
timeline for implementing easing monetary policies, thereby suppressing global
economic growth. As for the second half of 2024, as energy and commodity prices
weakened, labor market tightness in major economies eased, service-sector price
increases slowed, and major central banks successively cut interest rates to alleviate
monetary policy constraints, leading to moderate global economic growth.

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global trade growth rate
1s projected to increase from 3.1% in 2024 to 3.4% in 2025. With Taiwan’s well-
established and competitive local industrial supply chains, it is well-positioned to meet
the strong demand for computing power driven by the prosperous development of Al
Therefore, Taiwan’s export momentum is expected to maintain positive growth. In
terms of fixed investment, although the Central Bank’s 7th round of selective credit
control measures implemented in September 2024 has increased uncertainty of the
housing market outlook and suppressed some private investment momentum,
semiconductor manufacturers are actively expanding advanced process and high-end
packaging and testing capacities to embrace Al business opportunities, and also
continuing to invest in R&D. Meanwhile, transportation companies are expanding their
capacity, which will help sustain strong investment growth. According to the
Directorate-General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics forecast on November 28,
2024, Taiwan’s economic growth rate is estimated to be 4.27% for 2024 and 3.29% for
2025. In addition, the IEKCQM of ITRI forecasts a gradual recovery of economy in
2025. With the expansion of end-use application markets, it is expected that the total
output value of the manufacturing sector will reach NT$25.9 trillion, representing an
annual growth rate of 6.48%.

Despite the expectation that geopolitical tensions will persist in 2025, along with
unfavorable factors such as global and domestic financial markets entering an interest
rate cut cycle, tighter housing market regulations in Taiwan, leading to narrowing
interest rate spreads, obstacles in the domestic banks’ mortgage business, increased
investment challenges, and rising implicit risks related to overseas exposures, the
global economy is still expected to grow steadily, and Taiwan banks' overseas presence
and corporate financing loans are also expected to continue to expand. At the same
time, increased returns from banks’ bond investments, growing private consumption
increasing revenue from credit card business, and the ongoing expansion of wealth
management services all contribute positively to overall profitability. With the
continued promotion of the “Digital Financial Environment 3.0” by the Financial
Supervisory Commission and the rise of Al trends, the banking industry is not only
expected to lower costs, provide diversified services, and create new business
opportunities and markets, but also generate stronger profit momentum. Therefore,
Taiwan’s banking sector is expected to maintain its growth in 2025.
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The Bank will continue to adjust the structure of deposits and loans, with the goal
of increasing the amount of demand deposits in both NT dollars and foreign currencies
to lower funding costs. We will also strengthen foreign currency lending efforts to raise
the foreign currency loan-to-deposit ratio, improve the average loan interest rate, and
sustain momentum in net interest income growth in the coming year. In addition, to
enhance the efficiency of foreign currency funds utilization, the Bank will continue to
adjust the financial asset allocation, aiming to further improve interest spreads and the
Net Interest Margin (NIM).

The Bank will keep controlling asset quality, pursue profitable performance
growth and accumulate strength for future development while balancing the growth of
risk-weighted assets and returns. Furthermore, we will assess the level of provisions
for bad debts by taking into account the NPL ratio, coverage ratio, and the current
year’s profit performance, in order to strengthen our risk- taking capacity.

In the future business plan, the Bank takes "Create Diverse Sources of Revenue
and Achieve Sustainable and Inclusive Growth" as its main theme of 2025 business
strategy. With insights into fintech and sustainable trends, we aim to drive digital
transformation through Al, deepen customer engagement, and develop products and
services tailored to customer needs, thereby enhancing customer contribution,
balancing the income structure, and continuously reinforcing risk control and sound
operational foundations to maximize business synergies. In addition, the Bank will
continue to advance our sustainability capabilities and leverage our financial influence
to work with stakeholders toward the goal of sustainable and inclusive growth.

The Bank's operation results in 2024 and the business plan for 2025 are summarized
as below:

.  Operation Results in 2024
(1) Implementation of Business Plans and Operating Strategies

A. Profitability:

In 2024, the Bank carried out a capital increase of NT$9.456 billion via
transferred earnings and issued stock and cash dividends of NT$1.15 per share
and NT$0.20 per share, respectively, for the previous year (2023). Net income
after tax for 2024 amounted to NT$11.237 billion (net income before tax was
NT$14.063 billion).

B. Core Businesses:

a.NTD Deposit Business
The Bank increased the scale of NTD demand deposit to reduce the capital
costs and increase earnings. In 2024, the cumulative average balance of the
Bank’s NTD demand deposits was NT$859.026 billion, an increase of
NT$21.917 billion from NT$837.109 billion in 2023, a growth rate of 2.62%.

b.Corporate Banking Business
1) The Bank continues to engage in various corporate lending business. In
2024, the Bank's SME loan balance reached NT$754.442 billion, an
increase of NT$39.585 billion from NT$714.857 billion in 2023, a
growth rate of 5.54%.
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2) The Bank actively provides financing assistance for SMEs. In 2024, the
guarantee amount of loans transferred by the Bank to the Small and
Medium Enterprise Credit Guarantee Fund was NT$190.183 billion,
accounting for 14.63% of the total guaranteed balance for SMEs in the
country. As of the end of 2024, the guaranteed balance transferred by the
Bank to the Small and Medium Enterprise Credit Guarantee Fund
amounted to NT$218.462 billion, accounting for 15.43% of the total
guaranteed balance of SMEs nationwide and ranking first in Taiwan.

c.Personal Banking Business

In 2024, the Bank continued to actively expand the scale of residential
mortgage loans and supported the government's policy loans such as the
Ministry of Finance’s "Preferential Housing Loan Program for Successful
Family Foundation of Youth" and the Ministry of the Interior’s "Purchase and
Renovation Loans". As of the end of 2024, the Bank’s total outstanding
balance of personal loans extended by the Bank amounted to NT$448.985
billion, up by NT$76.915 billion or 20.67% compared to NT$372.070 billion
in 2023.

d.Foreign Exchange Business

In 2024, the Bank focused on the active promotion of expansion measures for
various foreign exchange businesses. The Bank's accumulated average
balance of foreign currency deposits in 2024 was NT$379.576 billion,
representing an increase of NT$8.487 billion or a growth of 2.29% as
compared with the average balance of NT$371.089 billion in 2023. In 2024,
the Bank's accumulated average balance of foreign currency loans was
NTS$163.749 billion, representing an increase of NT$13.931 billion or a
growth 0f9.30% as compared with the average balance of NT$149.818 billion
in 2023. In 2024, the Bank’s accumulated transaction amount of foreign
exchange business was US$69.467 billion, representing an increase of
US$6.154 billion or a growth of 9.72% as compared with US$63.313 billion
in 2023.

e. Wealth Management Business

In 2024, the Bank continued to strengthen its wealth management business by
vigorously expanding fee income from the insurance, funds, overseas bonds,
foreign stocks, ETF and gold passbooks businesses, with boosting revenue
and generating profit as the priority, and actively promoted the wealth-
management focused projects. Fee income from the wealth management
business amounted to approximately NT$3.381 billion in 2024, representing
an increase of nearly NT$670 million or a growth of 24.71% as compared
with NT$2.711 billion in 2023.

f. Digital Banking Business
1) The video service function "eVision" is now available for customers,
allowing them to apply via video for services such as increasing the limit
of Type 3 digital deposit accounts, activating online designated transfer-
in accounts, mobile banking device authentication, and resetting
passwords for internet banking or mobile banking users. In addition, the
"Senior Version" of the mobile banking APP has been launched, offering
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a user-friendly interface and features tailored specifically for middle-
aged and senior customers.

2) The Bank promoted the TWQR Taiwan Pay acquiring business, enabling
cross-border payment functions using QR code for purchases made in
South Korea. Additionally, marketing campaigns were held to boost the
adoption rate of electronic payments. The Bank also offers 14 exclusive
benefits to Hokii digital members, allowing customers to easily enjoy
digital financial services and experience a rich and diverse digital
lifestyle.

3) The Bank received digital recognition both domestically and
internationally: National Brand Yushan Award — Best Product Category
and Best Popular Brand Category; Global Finance Magazine Digital
Banking Awards - Best Personal Finance Digital Bank in Asia Pacific,
Best Online Product and Service in Asia Pacific, Best Online Product
and Service in Taiwan, Best Personal Mobile Bank in Taiwan, Best
Digital Transformation in Taiwan.

C. Actions in Support of Government Policies:

a. Following the Financial Supervisory Commission's "Roadmap for Taiwan
Listed Companies to Align with IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards"
and the TWSE's regulations, the Bank established an inter-departmental
"IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards Implementation” task force in the
4th quarter of 2024. The Bank also completed preliminary identification of
material differences in existing sustainability information and guidelines,
preliminary identification of reporting entities, and drafting of the
implementation plan in order to comply with regulatory requirements.

b. The Bank continued to follow the government's anti-fraud regulations. In
addition to joining the "Eagle Eye Fraud Detection Alliance" and utilizing the
Eagle Eye Model to monitor and detect fraud, the Bank completed the dual-
track operation with the "Financial Information Request and Joint Defense
Reporting e-Platform™ in November 2024, increasing the detection rate for
identifying suspicious transactions and abnormal accounts to facilitate timely
fraud prevention. The establishment of the watchlist account database was
completed in December 2024. The database holds the list of watchlist
accounts and proper measures are taken when the system identifies suspicious
criminals.

c. The Bank followed the "Self-Regulation of the Banking Industry on the
Introduction of Responsible Mapping System™ by the Bankers Association of
the Republic of China (BAROC) to establish the "Accountability Committee"
under the Board of Directors. The Committee came into effect on January 1,
2025.

d. The Bank continued to amend legal compliance and AML/CFT related rules
and guidelines according to the competent authority's regulations. The Bank
also performed the Compliance Risk Assessment (CRA) and the
Comprehensive Institutional Risk Assessment (IRA) for 2023 and reported to

-10 -



the FSC for review after being approved by the Board of Directors.

e. The Bank worked with an external F-SOC in financial cybersecurity joint
defense operations in order to strengthen cybersecurity intel sharing with other
financial institutions and obtain intel on intrusions in a timely manner. The
Bank also completed the implementation measures under the "Cybersecurity
Intel Sharing and Cooperation” in the Financial Cybersecurity Action Plan 2.0.
In 2024, the Bank selected obvious cyber attack and espionage incidents from
external parties and uploaded the information to the F-SOC to share with other
financial institutions.

D. Sustainable Development:
The Bank strives to implement sustainable operations. Key results from the
three aspects of sustainable development, Environmental (E), Social (S), and
Governance (G), in 2024 are as follows:

a. Environmental:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

The Bank provided upgrade and transformation guidance, sustainable
financing, and other one-stop services, and guided corporate customers
to implement ESG. A total of 1,647 green energy related project loans
were approved in 2024.

To support the government's 2050 net zero emission and to encourage
valued customers to adopt green consumption patterns that are friendly
to the environment, the Bank continued to promote the "Green Go
Shopping Loans", which had disbursed a total of NT$17 million as of the
end of 2024.

The three financial products, including digital deposit account, e-Loan
platform and credit card, received 1SO14067 Product Carbon Footprint
Verification. Credit card, e-Loan platform, and digital deposit account
also received six Product Carbon Footprint Labels from the Ministry of
Environment of the Executive Yuan.

The Bank was cited by the Ministry of Environment of the Executive
Yuan 13 years in a row for outstanding performance in green
procurement.

The Bank teamed up with the ASUS Foundation in a computer recycling
program, which provided recycled computers, monitors, and laptops to
rural areas or charity organizations. The program contributed to source
reduction and more recycling and reuse. A total of 324 machines were
recycled in 2024,

b. Social:

1)

The Bank continued the sponsorship of the Senior Learning Centers to
improve the quality of life and care for the disadvantaged elderly in the
community. As of the end of 2024, the Bank had set up 26 Senior
Learning Centers across Taiwan, and the cumulative sponsorship
reached NT$32.94 million. More than 390,000 seniors benefited from
the sponsorship every year.
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2)

3)

In 2024, the Bank raised childbirth subsidy twice and extended the
number of days for maternity leaves, pregnancy checkup leaves, and
pregnancy checkup accompaniment and paternity leaves to provide
friendly maternal care and ease parenting stress. The Bank hired a
professional institution to provide psychological counseling services
starting in October 2024. The services provide a channel for employees
to mitigate and relieve work stress and anxiety and to communicate and
resolve issues.

In support of the government's "Blueprint for Developing Taiwan into a
Bilingual Nation by 2030", the Bank set up 25 bilingual branches in
2024 and has a total of 103 bilingual branches as of 2024, accounting for
82.4% of the total branches. To enable customers with hearing/speech
Impairment to communicate in real time when making bank transactions,
the Bank enhanced the cooperation with the "Taiwanese Association of
Sign Language Translation Interpreters™ to provide a "real-time" sign
language interpreting service.

c. Governance:

1)

2)

3)

4)

The Bank completed the preparation of its 2023 TCFD Report and added
Taskforce on Nature-related Financial Disclosures (TNFD) to the report.
The Bank continued to perform TCFD model maturity conformity
inspection with third party verification, and received the highest "Level-
5+: Excellence" rating.

The Bank set the GHG reduction target for temperature increase control
under the Paris Agreement, and completed the review of the Bank's
science-based reduction targets (SBTS).

To strengthen its trademark management system and ensure effective
implementation of sustainable development policies while raising its
overall score in Corporate Governance Evaluation, the Bank obtained its
first official TIPS Class A certification on December 31, 2024.

d. Domestic and international sustainability awards:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

7)

National Brand Yushan Awards - First Prize, Outstanding Enterprise
Leader Award.

Excellent Enterprise in National Chengchi University's "First TCFD
Report Evaluation" in 2024.

"Top 25%" of FSC's 2nd "Sustainable Finance Evaluation”.

Received "National Enterprise Environmental Protection Award -
Bronze Award" from the Ministry of Environment for 2 consecutive
years.

2024 Corporate Governance Evaluation - "Top 6% - 20% of the Listed
Companies Group".

Received "Asia Responsible Enterprise Awards - Social Empowerment
Award" for 5 consecutive years.

Asian Banking & Finance Magazine "2024 Taiwan's Best Sustainability
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Initiative Award".

8) TSAA Taiwan Sustainability Action Awards: SDG15 Silver Award and
SDG13 Bronze Award.

9) TWSIA Taiwan Sustainable Investment Awards: Case Influences
Category - Silver Award for Sustainability Bonds.

(2) Budget Implementation

A. The annual average balance of deposits was NT$1,982.602 billion, for an
achievement rate of 105.01%.

B. The annual average balance of outstanding loans was NT$1,552.259 billion,
for an achievement rate of 101.41%.

C. The foreign exchange transactions amounted to US$69.468 billion, for an
achievement rate of 109.30%.

(3) Revenues, Expenditures, and Profitability

A. Net income for 2024 amounted to NT$34.115 billion; bad debt expense,
commitment, and provision for guarantee liabilities totaled NT$3.442 billion;
operating expenses were NT$16.610 billion; before-tax net income from
continuing operations was NT$14.063 billion; net profit after tax was
NT$11.237 billion; return on assets ratio (after-tax) amounted to 0.49%;
return on equity ratio (after-tax) amounted to 8.93%; net profit margin (after-
tax) was 32.94%, and earnings per share (after-tax) was NT$1.23.

B. Net income before taxes (excluding provisions) in 2024 amounted to
NT$17.505 billion, an increase of NT$850 million over 2023. NT$3.442
billion was allocated as an allowance for bad debts in order to strengthen credit
risk appetite. Before-tax net profit for 2024 amounted to NT$14.063 billion,
an increase of NT$1.635 billion over 2023, primarily due to an increase in net
interest revenue and net service fee revenue.

C. The non-performing loan (NPL) ratio at the end of 2024 stood at 0.17%, a
decrease of 0.01% compared with the end of 2023. The bad-debt coverage
ratio was 790.84%, an increase of 69.96% over the end of 2023.

(4) Research and Development

A. Establishment of an Exclusive Unit for Industry Research

a. During 2024, 53 weekly reports on domestic and overseas economic and
financial situation, 96 industrial dynamics reports, 12 domestic and
overseas economic situation and industry overview reports, 12 monthly
reports on industry trends, and 4 quarterly reports on prospects of domestic
industries were completed.

b. Elite professionals from industry, government, and academia are invited
to speak on an occasional basis to help the Bank's employees understand
the latest trends in industrial development.

B. Encouragement of Innovation and Professionalism in Line with Business
Development Needs
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a. Business lectures are held on a scheduled basis and a wide variety of
digital learning courses are offered to encourage employees to engage in
further on-the-job studies and absorb new knowledge that will strengthen
their competitiveness and enhance their professional know-how.

b.In terms of R&D patents, the Bank continues to accumulate FinTech
innovation momentum, adding 12 invention patents and 20 new utility
model patents in 2024.

II. Business Plan for 2025
(1) Operating Directions and Policies

A. Create Diverse Sources of Revenue and Increase Customer Value
a. Strengthen the twin-pillar profit structure and develop diverse revenue
Sources.
® Improve the deposit-loan structure and boost profits from core
deposit/loan businesses.
® Expand business development for the personal banking group and
create a balanced revenue structure.
® Reinforce overseas business operations and increase the percentage of
their profit contributions.
b. Promote digital banking and optimize system support.
® Continue to develop digital banking, optimize customer experience,
utilize Al-driven digital transition, and strengthen corporate
competitiveness.
® Optimize system support and improve operational procedures and
efficiency.
c. Cultivate the customer base and enhance customer value.
® Work actively to explore new customers, increase the number of active
SME accounts, and expand the customer base for core corporate
banking business.
® Develop a complete line of products to meet a wide range of customer
demands.
® Start with corporate and personal accounts and work to increase the

number of products per account and raise customer contribution
(ROA3).

B. Strengthen Risk Management and Build a Solid Business Foundation
a. Monitor the risk indicators closely and improve asset quality.
® Build a comprehensive risk management system and increase risk
tolerance.
® Strengthen credit management and improve asset quality.
® Strengthen risk management for financial asset transactions in order to
effectively avoid interest rate and market risks.
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b. Manage risk-weighted assets and increase capital utilization efficiency.
® Monitor asset allocation and increase businesses with lower risk
weights.
® Place equal emphasis on business development and return, and
effectively increase return on risk-weighted assets.
c. Strengthen internal control and legal compliance at the same time for
better risk management performance.
® Refine internal audit, internal control and legal compliance for better
business resilience.
® Raise cybersecurity awareness and develop a more comprehensive
cybersecurity risk management system.

C. Implement ESG Governance and Achieve Sustainable and Inclusive
Growth
a. Implement international guidelines and build up strength in sustainable
management.
® Observe global trends in sustainability and improve results of
sustainability evaluation.
® Implement IFRS sustainability disclosure standards and strengthen the
disclosure of sustainable information.
® | cverage financial influence to promote sustainable financial products
and services.
b. Optimize in-house operation management and strengthen business
resilience.
® Take a customer centric approach and enhance fair customer treatment.
® Strengthen climate risk governance and gradually achieve SBT carbon
reduction goals.
c. Facilitate stakeholder management and create long-term corporate value.
® Protect shareholder interest and enhance corporate value and
sustainable development.
® Strengthen information disclosure and communicate actively with
stakeholders.
® Create a diverse and inclusive workplace and achieve sustainable
human resources management.

(2) Future Development Strategies

A.Cultivate SME core businesses, put customers first, and provide one-stop
services to meet customers’ demand for banking services in order to achieve
the vision of becoming the bank of first choice for SMEs.

B. Maintain a balance in business development, create diverse sources of profit,
improve asset quality, and increase capital utilization efficiency in order to
pursue strong business performance on the solid basis of operations.

C.Embrace innovative thinking, promote digital transition, take advantage of
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Al and new technologies to support software/hardware upgrades, deepen
customer relations, optimize products and services, and build a premium
banking experience in order to boost corporate competitiveness.

D.Implement ethical corporate management and build a corporate culture
centered on legal compliance, AML/CFT, and fair customer treatment to
facilitate sound management.

E.Place an emphasis on talent development and retention, create a complete
career development roadmap and training, provide incentives for continuous
team growth, and build a happy workplace in order to achieve talent
sustainability.

F. Practice sustainable management philosophy, continue to follow global
sustainability trends, extend reach into different aspects of ESG, and pay
attention to stakeholder development and communication in order to create
a future of inclusion and mutual benefit.

(3) Business Targets

To give equal weight to the protection of shareholder interests, improve the
capital structure, and enhance asset quality, the Bank has set the following
targets in consideration of the Directorate General of Budget, Accounting and
Statistics for 2025.

A. Annual average deposit balance: NT$2,102.898 billion.

B. Annual average balance of loans outstanding: NT$1,641.383 billion.

C. Total foreign exchange transactions: US$70.440 billion.

I11. Results of Latest Credit Rating

Date of Ratings
Ratin Rating Institution | Long-term | Short-term | Outlook
e Credit Credit
2025.1.21 Taiwan Ratings twAA- twA-1+ Stable
2025.1.21 Standard & Poor's BBB+ A-2 Stable
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd. and subsidiaries (“the
Bank and subsidiaries”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Bank and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Held Banks, and with the Regulation
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities firms.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants, Jing-Kuan-Yin-Zi No.1082731571 and Standards on Auditing of
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank and subsidiaries in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified
Public Account of Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirement. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

The assessment of loans impairment

Please refer to Note 4(f) "Financial Instruments" for related accounting policy, Note 5 for accounting
assumptions and estimates, and Note 6(f) "Discount and loans,net" and Note 6 (ap) "Financial Risk Information"
for details of loans impairment, respectively.

KPMG, a Taiwan parinership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limilad, a private English company limited by guarantes
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Description of key audit matter:

The management of the Bank and subsidiaries assess the impairment of loans by determining if there is any
observable evidence indicating impairment, and dividing them into collective assessment and individual
assessment based on the materiality levels to measure by different impairment method. For the individual
assessment with objective evidence of impairment, the measurement is based on expected future cash flow. For
the collective assessment with objective evidence of impairment, the Bank and its subsidairies need to calculate
the recovery rate of each group to measure the impairment amount. For the collectively assessed loans without
objective evidence of impairment, the impairment is calculated by establishing an impairment model using the
pass loss experience on assets with similiar credit risk characteristic to form basic estimation. Besides the
methods mentioned above, the management of the Bank and its subsidairies should inspect weather the amount
of impairment is in compliance with the minimum level made by the authority. Both the evaluation of
impairment evidences and its methods, as well as the uses of assumptions, such as the expected recovery rates
and default rates, which are applied to determine the future cash flow, involved significant judgements and
estimations. Therefore, the assessment on the impairment of loans has been identified as a key audit matter in
our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: understanding the methodology and related control procedure about
how the management asseses and measures the impairment amount of loans. For individual assessment, we used
sampling test to evaluate the use of the original effective interest rate, the appropriateness of the estimation of
future recoverable amounts and value of collateral. For collective assessment, we assessed the impairment
model adopted by the management and reviewed the appropriated of the calculation of the impairment
parameters and verified the completeness of the loans portfolio via sampling. The impaired amounts recognized
by the management were in compliance with the related regulations issued by authority. Meanwile, we assessed
whether allowance for the loans meets the requirements.

Other Matter

Taiwan Business Bank, Ltd. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Held Banks, and
with the IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of
the Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank and
subsidiaries ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank and
subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee), are responsible for overseeing the Bank and
subsidiaries financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank and subsidiaries internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank and subsidiaries ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank and subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going
concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Bank and subsidiaries to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Bank and subsidiaries
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Lee, Feng-Hui and Tsai,
Pei-Ju.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 21, 2025

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese

version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
TAIWAN BUSINESS BANK, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

For the years ended December 31, Percent
2024 2023 Change
Amount Yo Amount Yo %
Interest income (Notes 6(ad) and 7) $ 55,437,141 163 49,116,713 154 13
Less: Interest expenses (Notes 6(ad) and 7) (36,321,371) (106) _ (30,411,203) _ (95) 19
Net interest revenue 19,115,770 57 18,705,510 59 2
Net revenue other than interest
Net service fee revenue (Notes 6(ae) and 13) 6,556,576 19 4,617,356 14 42
Gain on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6(af)) 6,283,534 18 6,718,444 21 (6)
Realized gain on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Note 6(ag)) 1,155,084 3 1,234,707 4 (6)
Gain arising from derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost (Note 6(h)) 145 - 170 - (15)
Foreign exchange gain 332,892 1 196,130 1 70
(Impairment loss on assets) reversal of impairment loss on assets (Note 6(ah)) 22,436 - (15,335) - (246)
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method (Notes 6(h) - - (808) - 100
and 6(ai))
Net other revenue other than interest income (Note 6(aj)) 124,823 - 72,693 - 72
Net securities brokering revenue 523,327 2 384,677 1 36
Net revenue 34,114,587 100 31,913,544 100 7
Bad debts expense, commitment and guarantee liability provision (Note 6(ak)) (3.441,648) _ (10) (4.226,518) _ (13) (19)
Operating expenses
Employee benefits expenses (Note 6(al)) (9.877,374)  (29)  (9,079,004) (28) 9
Depreciation and amortization expense (Note 6(am)) (1,369,689) 4) (1,272,085) (4) 8
Other general and administrative expense (Note 6(an)) (5,363,212) _ (16) (4,908,130) _ (15) 9
Total operating expense (16,610,275) _ (49) _ (15,259.219) _ (47) 9
Income from continuing operation before tax 14,062,664 41 12,427,807 40 13
Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(z)) 2825963 _ 8 1,860,132 6 52
Net income 11,236,701 33 10,567,675 34 6
Other comprehensive income:
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Note 6(z)) 166,594 - (233,043) (1) 171
Revaluation gains (losses) on investments in equity instruments measured at fair value 2,101,354 6 4,553,627 14 (34)
through other comprehensive income
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be 33,319 - (46,609) - 171
reclassified to profit or loss (Note 6(z))
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2,234,629 6 4,367,193 13 (49)
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation 1,036,520 3 (39,156) - 2,747
(Losses) gains from investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through other (1,334,815) (4) 1,931,940 6 (169)
comprehensive income
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be 217,286 1 9,656 - (2,150)
reclassified to profit or loss (Note 6(z))
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss (515,581) (2) 1,883,128 6 127
Other comprehensive income 1,719,048 4 6,250,321 19 (72)
Total comprehensive income $_ 12,955,749 37 16,817,996 53 (23)

Earnings per share (in NT dollar) (Note 6(ab))

Basic earnings per share (in NT dollar) $ 1.23

1.22

L15

Diluted earnings per share (in NT dollar) §

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

TAITWAN BUSINESS BANK, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income before tax $ 14,062,664 12,427,807
Adjustments:
Income and expences items:
Depreciation expense 998,358 985,755
Amortization expense 371,331 286,330
Provision for bad debt expense 3,409,557 4,188,472
Net losses (gains) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,082,777 (1,936,453)
Interest expenses 36,321,371 30,411,203
Net gain arising from derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost (145) (170)
Interest income (55,437,141) (49,116,713)
Net change in provisions for guarantee liabilities 62,365 47,333
Net change in other provisions (28,893) (6,677)
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method - 808
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 2,916 1,660
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment loss) on financial assets (22,436) 15,335
Other items (14) 14
Total adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) (13,239,954) (15,123,103)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
(Increase) decrease in due from the central bank and call loans to banks (47,817,337) 28,631,604
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (9,786,997) (37,360,746)
Increase in securities purchased under resell agreements (3,141,880) (6,312,592)
Increase in receivables (714,219) (1,514,546)
Increase in discounts and loans (131,144,156) (95,379,615)
Decrease in other financial assets 4,773 13,018
(Increase) decrease in other assets (2,934,696) 4,620,986
Total changes in operating assets (195,534,512) (107,301,891)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in deposits from the central bank and banks 77,535,116 (31,803,621)
Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 83,559 (687,101)
Increase (decrease) in notes and bonds issued under repurchase agreement 224,393 (676,276)
Decrease in payable (5,639,904) (447,852)
Increase in deposits and remittances 80,428,618 149,832,971
Increase (decrease) in other financial liabilities 391,730 (774,179)
Decrease in provisions for employee benefits (387.729) (46,312)
Total changes in operating liabilities 152,635,783 115,397,630
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (42,898,729) 8,095,739
Total adjustments (56,138,683) (7,027,364)
Cash (outflow) inflow generated from operations (42,076,019) 5,400,443
Interest received 54,840,073 47,746,448
Interest paid (34,913,792) (27,563,323)
Income taxes paid (2,128,652) (2,596,783)
Net Cash flows (used in) from operating activities (24,278.390) 22,986,785
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - (22,939,444)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 5,174,123 -
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost (166,836,782) (219,827,853)
Proceeds from repayments of financial assets at amortised cost 189,497,956 203,701,380
Acquisition of property and equipment (470,352) (527,576)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 115 109
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits (411,632) 233,749
Acquisition of intangible assets (579,640) (399,651)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 26,373,788 (39.759,286)
Cash flows (used in) from financing activities:
Increase in due to the central bank and banks 11,666 300,815
Proceeds from issuing bank notes payable - 9,000,000
Repayments of bank notes payable (390,000) (7,400,000)
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received 1,580,289 (1,984,985)
Payment of lease liabilities (451,339) (442,420)
Increase in other liabilities 82,382 3,194,862
Cash dividends paid (1,644,481) (802,969)
Other financing activities 229 -
Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities (811,254) 1,865,303
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 22,868 3,817
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,307,012 (14,903,381)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 34,356,881 49,260,262
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 35,663,893 34,356,881

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Taiwan Business Bank Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Taiwan Business Bank Ltd. (“the Bank™), which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the years then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Public Held Banks, and with the Regulation Governing the preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Firms.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits of the current period in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants, Jin-Kuan-Yin-Zi No.1082731571 and
Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Bank and subsidiaries in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of
Professional Ethics in Republic of China ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

The assessment of loans impairment

Please refer to Note (4) (e) "Financial Instruments" for related accounting policy, Note 5 for accounting
assumptions and estimates, and Note 6 (f) "Discount and loans, net" and Note 6 (ao) "Financial Risk
Information" for details of loans impairment, respectively.

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantse.
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Description of key audit matter :

The management of the Bank assess the impairment of loans by determining if there is any observable evidence
indicating impairment, and dividing them into collective assessment and individual assessment based on the
materiality levels to measure by different impairment method. For the individual assessment with objective
evidence of impairment, the measurement is based on expected future cash flow. For the collective assessment
with objective evidence of impairment, the Bank needs to calculate the recovery rate of each group to measure
the impairment amount. For the collectively assessed loans without objective evidence of impairment, the
impairment is calculated by establishing an impairment model using the pass loss experience on assets with
similiar credit risk characteristic to form basic estimation. Besides the methods mentioned above, the
management of the Bank should inspect weather the amount of impairment is in compliance with the minimum
level made by the authority. Both the evaluation of impairment evidences and its methods, as well as the uses of
assumptions, such as the expected recovery rates and default rates, which are applied to determine the future
cash flow, involved significant judgements and estimations. Therefore, the assessment on the impairment of
loans has been identified as a key audit matter in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: understanding the methodology and related control procedure about
how the management asseses and measures the impairment amount of loans. For individual assessment, we used
sampling test to evaluate the use of the original effective interest rate, the appropriateness of the estimation of
future recoverable amounts and value of collateral. For collective assessment, we assessed the impairment
model adopted by the management and reviewed the appropriated of the calculation of the impairment
parameters and verified the completeness of the loans portfolio via sampling. Meanwhile, we assessed the
impaired amounts recognized by the management were in compliance with the related regulations issued by
authonity.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Held Banks, and the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4, Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Lee, Feng-Hui and Tsai,
Pei-Ju.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 21, 2025

Notes to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the statement of financial position, financial performance and cash
flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other
jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the
Republic of China.

The independent auditors® report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared

and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English and Chinese
language auditors’ report and financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
TAIWAN BUSINESS BANK LTD.
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Earnings per share (in NT dollar) (Note 6(aa))
Basic earnings per share (in NT dollar)

115

For the years ended D ber 31, Percent
2024 2023 Change
Amount % Amount % %
Interest income (Notes 6(ac) and 7) $ 55,208,369 163 48,923,367 154 13
Less:Interest expenses (Notes 6(ac) and 7) (36,263,874) _(107) _ (30,355,987) _ (96) 19
Net interest revenue 18,944,495 56 18,567,380 58 2
Net revenue other than interest
Net service fee revenue (losses) (Notes 6(ad) and 13) 6,531,242 19 4,580,518 14 43
Gain on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (Note 6(ae)) 6,146,298 18 6,547,250 21 (6)
Realized gain on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Note 1,154,743 4 1,234,379 4 (6)
6(af))
Gain arising from derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost (Note 6(h)) 145 - 170 - (15)
Foreign exchange gain 330,751 1 194,592 1 70
(Impairment loss on assets) reversal of impairment loss on assets (Note 6(ag)) 22,436 - (15,335) - (246)
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method (Notes 6(i) 160,147 - 187,631 1 (15)
and 6(ah))
Net other revenue other than interest income (loss) (Note 6(ai)) 105,219 - 49,551 - 112
Net securities brokering revenue 523327 _ 2 384677 _ 1 36
Net revenue 33,918,803 _ 100 31,730,813 _ 100 7
Bad debts expense, commitment and guarantee liability provision (Note 6(aj)) (3.432,591) _ (10) (4,211,437) _ (13) (18)
Operating expenses
Employee benefits expenses (Note 6(ak)) (9,775,958) (29) (8,986,358) (28) 9
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 6(al)) (1,357,756) (4) (1,262,659) 4) 8
Other general and administrative expenses (Note 6(am)) (5,321,901) _ (16) _ (4,867,037) _ (15) 9
Total operating expense (16,455,615) _ (49) _ (15,116,054) _ (47) 9
Income from continuing operation before tax 14,030,597 41 12,403,322 40 13
Less: Income tax expenses (Note 6(y)) 2,7938% _ 8 1,835647 _ 6 52
Net income 11,236,701 _ 33 10,567,675 _ 34 6
Other comprehensive income:
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Note 6(z)) 166,594 1 (233,043) (1) 171
Revaluation gains (losses) on investments in equity instruments measured at fair value 2,100,478 6 4,553,802 14 (54)
through other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using 876 - (175) - 601
equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be 33,319 - (46,609) - 171
reclassified to profit or loss (Note 6(y)) _ -
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or 2234629 _ 7 4,367,193 _ 13 (49)
loss
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation 1,001,341 3 (20,714) - 4,934
Gains (losses) from investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through other (1,334,815) 4 1,931,940 6 (169)
comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using 28,143 - (14,754) - 291
equity method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Less: Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be 210,250 1 13,344 - (1,476)
reclassified to profit or loss (Note 6(y)) . _
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss (515,581) _ (2) 1,883,128 _ 6 127
Other comprehensive income 1.719.048 5 6,250,321 _ 19 (72)
Total comprehensive income $ 12,955,749 38 16,817,996 _ 53 (23)
1.23
1.22

Diluted earnings per share (in NT dollar)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(English Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)
TAIWAN BUSINESS BANK LTD.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income before tax 14,030,597 12,403,322
Adjustments:
Income and expenses items:
Depreciation expense 987,474 976,770
Amortization expense 370,282 285,889
Provision for bad debt expense 3,399,898 4,171,534
Net loss (gains) on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1,073,382 (1,927,531)
Interest expenses 36,263,874 30,355,987
Net gain arising from derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised cost (145) (170)
Interest income (55,208,369) (48,923,367)
Dividend income 15,442 50,135
Net change in provisions for guarantee liabilities 62,365 47,333
Net change in other provisions (28,893) (6,677)
Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method (160,147) (187,631)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 2916 1,660
Impairment loss on financial assets (22,436) 15,335
Other items (14) 14
Total adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) (13,244 371) (15,140,719)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
(Increase) decrease in due from the central bank and call loans to banks (47,817,832) 28,631,885
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (9,592,321) (37,310,908)
Increase in securities purchased under resell agreements (3,141,880) (6,312,592)
Increase in receivables (599,226) (774,355)
Increase in discounts and loans (131,144,156) (95,379,615)
Decrease in other financial assets 4,773 13,018
(Increase) decrease in other assets (3,012,122) 7,746 473
Total changes in operating assets (195,302,764) (103,386,094)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in deposits from the central bank and banks 77,535,116 (31,803,621)
Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 83,559 (687,101)
Increase (decrease) in notes and bonds issued under repurchase agreement 224,393 (676,276)
Decrease in payable (6,225,267) (404,672)
Increase in deposits and remittances 80,426,792 149,701,734
Increase (decrease) in other financial liabilities 391,730 (774,179)
Decrease in provisions for employee benefits (387,729) (46,312)
Total changes in operating liabilities 152,048,594 115,309,573
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (43,254,170) 11,923,479
Total adjustments (56,498,541) (3,217,240)
Cash (outflow) inflow generated from operations (42,467,944) 9,186,082
Interest received 54,585,973 47,551,514
Interest paid (34,855,422) (27,506,094)
Income taxes paid (1,538,591) (2,595,655)
Net Cash flows (used in) from operating activities (24,275,984) 26,635,847
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - (22,939,444)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 5,174,123 -
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost (166,836,782) (219,827,853)
Proceeds from repayments of financial assets at amortised cost 189,497,956 203,701,380
Acquisition of property and equipment (470,136) (525,642)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 115 109
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits (409,434) 233,859
Acquisition of intangible assets (579.640) (389,007)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 26,376,202 (39,746,598)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuing bank notes payable - 9,000,000
Repayments of bank notes payable (390,000) (7,400,000)
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposits received 1,580,977 (2,013,893)
Payment of lease liabilities (442,686) (434,329)
Increase in other liabilities 103,162 93,049
Cash dividends paid (1,644,481) (802,969)
Other financing activities 229 -
Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities (792,799) (1,558,142)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 40,854 3,789
Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,348,273 (14,665,104)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 34,214,743 48,879,847
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 35,563,016 34,214,743

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Proposal 2 (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: Adoption of the 2024 earnings distribution from the final
accounts of the Bank
Description:
1. After an audit, the Bank's 2024 earnings available for distribution

amounted to NT$10,686,400,981.16, as described below:

(1) The opening undistributed earnings for 2024 amounted to
NT$1,164,370,028.01.

(2) Items added:

A. After reviewed and approved by Accountant Feng-Hui
Lee and Pei-Ju Tsai from KPMG, the after-tax net income
for 2024 was NT$11,236,700,760.64.

B. Reversal of the "Recognized Actuarial Gains and Losses
for Defined Benefit Plans" amounted to NT$133,275,200.

C. "Gains (losses) from Investments in Equity Instruments
Measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive
Income" amounted to NT$2,232,925,401.

(3) Items deducted:

Legal reserve appropriated: NT$4,080,870,408.49.

(4) Distribution of shareholders' bonus - cash dividends
(NT$0.20 per share): NT$1,833,596,576; the minimum
distribution of cash dividend made to shareholders shall be
round up to NT$1, and fraction cash dividend less than NT$1
shall be accounted as other income.

(5) Distribution of shareholders' bonus - stock dividends
(NT$0.60 per share): NT$5,500,789,730.

(6) Closing undistributed earnings: NT$3,352,014,675.16.

2. Please refer to Page 34 of this Handbook for the "Distribution of

Earnings for 2024."

Resolution:
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Taiwan Business Bank Co., Ltd.
Distribution of Earnings

Year 2024

Unit: NT$

Item

Amount

Opening undistributed earnings

1,164,370,028.01

Add: After-tax net income for 2024

11,236,700,760.64

Add: Reversal of Recognized Actuarial Gains and
Losses for Defined Benefit Plans

133,275,200.00

Add: Gains (losses) from Investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

2,232,925,401.00

Less: Legal reserve appropriated

(4,080,870,408.49)

Earnings available for distribution

10,686,400,981.16

Items of distribution:

Shareholders' bonus - cash dividends
(NT$0.20 per share)

1,833,596,576.00

Shareholders' bonus - stock dividends
(NT$0.60 per share)

5,500,789,730.00

Closing undistributed earnings

3,352,014,675.16

Note:

1. The calculation of shareholders' bonus per share was based on 9,167,982,876 shares.
2. The distribution shall initially be appropriated from the undistributed earnings in the latest

year.
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IV.Discussion
Proposal 1 (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: Resolution to carry out a capital increase via transferred
earnings in accordance with the earnings distribution of
stock dividends for 2024, hereby submitted for approval.
Description:

1. In response to the requirements on the inclusion of common
equity capital under the new Basel III to improve its capital
structure and increase the profitability, the Bank intends to carry
out a capital increase via transferred earnings for the issuance of
550,078,973 new shares according to the requirements under
Article 240 of the Company Act.

2. Total amount of the new shares for capital increase and the
conditions for issuance:

(1) A capital increase of NT$5,500,789,730 is proposed, with the
par value of NT$10 per share, for the issuance of
550,078,973 new registered common shares.

(2) The capital increase via transferred earnings shall be
submitted to the competent authority for approval after being
approved by the shareholders' meeting, and the Board will
then determine the ex-rights base date for the issuance of new
shares. Based on the shareholding ratio stated in the
Shareholders' registrar on the ex-rights base date, 60 bonus
shares will be issued for every thousand shares held. For
fraction shares less than one share, shareholders may present
at the stock affairs agency of the Bank within 5 days from the
ex-rights base date for aggregation. Fractional shares not
added up to a whole share may be converted into cash
(rounded to the nearest dollar). Accumulated fractional shares

not aggregated within the specified period will be authorized
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by the Chairman to be subscribed to by specific individuals at
face value.

(3) Subsequently, if the repurchase of the Bank's shares, the
transfer, conversion, and cancellation of treasury shares, or
other situations affect the total number of outstanding shares,
resulting in a change in the shareholder subscription rate, the
Board proposes to seek authorization from the shareholders'
meeting to handle the necessary changes.

(4) The rights and obligations of the new shares issued under the
capital increase via transferred earnings are the same as those
of the previously issued shares.

3. Impact of the issuance of bonus shares on the business
performance and earnings per share of the Bank:

Pursuant to the provisions in the "Regulations Governing the
Publication of Financial Forecasts of Public Companies" and
"Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation Standards for Determining
Whether a TWSE Listed Company Shall Publish Complete
Financial Forecasts", the Bank has not made public the financial
forecast of 2025, and therefore cannot disclose the forecast
information on the Bank's operating income, profit or loss and
earnings per share as a result of the issuance of bonus shares. This
item thus does not apply to the Bank.

4, After this capital increase, the total paid-in capital will be
NT$97,180,618,490, falling within the total capital of NT$100
billion of the Bank.

5. The Bank proposes to authorize the Board to exercise its full

powers in respect of the matters not covered in this proposal.

Resolution:
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Proposal 2 (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Bank

Description:

1. The key points of the amendments to the Bank's Articles of
Association are as follows:

(1) The Bank’s total capital amount is currently NT$100 billion,
and the paid-in capital has reached NT$91.6 billion. In order
to increase the capital in a timely manner and raise the
common equity ratio to the level of the industry, it is
proposed to raise the total capital to NT$130 billion. (Article
5)

(2) In accordance with Article 14, Paragraph 6 of the Securities
and Exchange Act, a company shall specify in its articles of
incorporation that a certain percentage of its annual earnings
shall be allocated for salary adjustments or compensation
distributions for its non-executive employees. Therefore, it is
stipulated that at least 20% of the total employee
remuneration for the year shall be allocated to non-executive
employees. (Article 41, Paragraph 1)

2.For the "Comparison Table of the Drafted Amendments to the

Articles of Association" of the Bank, please refer to Page 38 of
this Handbook.

Resolution:
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Comparison Table of the Drafted Amendments to the Articles of

Association
Amended Provisions Current Provisions Explanation
Article 5 Article 5 The Bank’s paid-in

The total capital amount of
the Bank is NT$130 billion
only, and has been divided
into 13 billion shares with a
nominal value of NT$10
each. The Board is
authorized to resolve and
1ssue the un-issued shares
1n batches.

The total capital amount of
the Bank is NT$100 billion
only, and has been divided
into 10 billion shares with a
nominal value of NT$10
each. The Board is
authorized to resolve and
1ssue the un-issued shares in
batches.

capital has reached
NT$91.6 billion. In
order to increase the
capital in a timely
manner and raise the
common equity ratio to
the level of the industry,
it is proposed to raise
the total capital.

Article 41

Shall there be general final

accounts surplus, the Bank

shall allocate such surplus
to taxation payment and
accumulated losses
coverage first and then the
remaining balances shall be
utilized as follow:

I. Allocate 1% to 6% as
employee remuneration
(accounted for as
expenses), and at least
20% of the total
employee remuneration
for the year shall be
allocated to non-
executive employees.

I1. Allocate 0.6% as
Director remuneration
(accounted for as
expenses).

Employee remuneration

shall be provided in share

certificates or cash, and
such resolution shall
receive the consent from the
majority of attending

Directors at a Board

meeting attended by the

two-thirds of the Directors,
and report to the
shareholders' meeting.

Article 41

Shall there be general final

accounts surplus, the Bank

shall allocate such surplus
to taxation payment and
accumulated losses
coverage first and then the
remaining balances shall be
utilized as follow:

I. Allocate 1% to 6% as
employee remuneration
(accounted for as
expenses).

I1. Allocate 0.6% as
Director remuneration
(accounted for as
expenses).

Employee remuneration

shall be provided in share

certificates or cash, and
such resolution shall
receive the consent from the
majority of attending

Directors at a Board

meeting attended by the

two-thirds of the Directors,
and report to the
shareholders' meeting.

In accordance with
Article 14, Paragraph 6
of the Securities and
Exchange Act, a
company shall specify
in its articles of
incorporation that a
certain percentage of its
annual earnings shall be
allocated for salary
adjustments or
compensation
distributions for its non-
executive employees.
Therefore, it is proposed
to amend Paragraph 1,
Subparagraph 1 to
stipulate that at least
20% of the total
employee remuneration
for the year shall be
allocated to non-
executive employees.
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Proposal 3 (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: Proposal for lifting the non-competition restriction for the
Directors of the Board, hereby submitted for approval.

Description:

1. Pursuant to Article 209, paragraph 1 of the Company Act, "A
director who does anything for himself or on behalf of another
person that is within the scope of the company's business, shall
explain to the meeting of shareholders the essential contents of
such an act and secure its approval"; and the explanation given
by the Letter Ri-Shang-Zi No. 89206938 dated April 24, 2000
sent from the Ministry of Economy reads that, "If a
representative authorized by a government agency or a juristic
person acting as a shareholder is elected as a Director, both said
government agency or said juristic person, and its authorized
representative shall be subject to the non-competition restriction
for the Directors of the Board."

2. Certain directors of The Bank’s 17th Board of Directors
(including legal entities and their designated representatives)
have engaged in acts within the business scope of the Bank for
themselves or for others, without having obtained prior approval
from the shareholders' meeting (please refer to page 40 of this
Handbook). The Bank intends to seek permission from the
shareholders' meeting to lift their non-competition restriction.

Resolution:
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List of Lifting the Non-Competition Restriction for the Directors of the
Board, Taiwan Business Bank Co., Ltd.

Director and the | Directors who hold positions in other companies that engage
names of legal in the same business as the Bank or its subsidiaries

person shareholders

they represent Competitor Position
Chief Secretary, Taiwan
Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.;
Deng-Ran Wu Chief Secretary of the Board
(Bank of Taiwan | Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd. of Directors' Office &
Representative) Director of the Human
Resources Department, Bank
of Taiwan
Mei-Ling Liang Director of the General
(Bank of Taiwan | Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd. Affairs Department, Bank of
Representative) Taiwan
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V. Questions and Motions
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VI1.Appendices
1. Rules of Procedures for Shareholders' Meetings of Taiwan
Business Bank Co., Ltd.

The annual shareholders' meeting passed the Rules of Procedures on November 16, 1996.
The 1st amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on December 19, 1998.
The 2nd amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on May 18, 2001.

The 3rd amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on May 24, 2002.

The 4th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on June 23, 2010.

The 5th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on May 25, 2012.

The 6th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on June 21,2013.

The 7th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on May 29,2020.

The 8th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting on June 16,2023.

Article 1 (Purpose and applying principle)

To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for the
Bank's shareholders' meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these
Rules are adopted for compliance.

The rules of procedures for the Bank's shareholders meetings, except as otherwise
provided by law, regulation, or the articles of association, shall be as provided in
these Rules.

Article 2 (Convening shareholders' meetings and meeting notices)

Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, the Bank's shareholders' meetings

shall be convened by the board of directors. A virtual shareholders' meeting shall

be convened upon the resolution of the board of directors with the attendance of
two-thirds or more of the directors and approval of the majority of the attending
directors.

Changes to how the Bank convenes its shareholders' meeting shall be resolved by

the board of directors, and shall be made no later than mailing of the shareholders'

meeting notice.

In the event of natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events announced

by the Ministry of Economic Affairs, the Bank shall handle the following matters

upon the resolution of the board of directors to convene a virtual shareholders'
meeting:

1. If the Bank has changed the convening method and has already mailed the
notice for convening a shareholders' meeting or transmitted the notice via
electronic documents, it may announce the change of the convening method of a
shareholders' meeting on the information reporting website designated by the
competent authority.

2. If the Bank convenes a virtual shareholders' meeting and provides a shareholder
who has difficulty taking part in a virtual shareholders' meeting with alternative
measures to exercise voting rights by correspondence, the shareholder intending
to exercise voting rights by correspondence shall apply to the Bank in advance,
and the provisions in Article 5, paragraph 2 of the "Regulations Governing
Content and Compliance Requirements for Shareholders' Meeting Agenda
Handbooks of Public Companies" regarding materials that shall also be sent to
the shareholders do not apply.
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3. Other necessary emergency measures as provided by the competent authority.

The Bank shall notify each shareholder before 30 days before the date of a regular

shareholders' meeting or before 15 days before the date of a special shareholders'

meeting. The Bank may notify shareholders holding less than 1,000 inscribed

stocks by way of entering the information into the Market Observation Post

System (MOPS) as announcement.

The Bank shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders' meeting agenda and

supplemental meeting materials, meeting notice and proxy forms, and the origins

of and explanatory materials relating to all proposals, including proposals for

ratification, matters for deliberation, or the election or dismissal of directors, and

upload them to the MOPS.

The Bank shall make the meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials in

the preceding paragraph available to shareholders for review in the following

manner on the date of the shareholders' meeting:

1. For physical shareholders' meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting.

2. For hybrid shareholders' meetings, to be distributed on-site at the meeting and
shared on the virtual meeting platform.

3. For virtual-only shareholders' meetings, electronic files shall be shared on the
virtual meeting platform.

The reasons for convening a shareholders' meeting shall be specified in the

meeting notice and public announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the

meeting notice may be given in electronic form.

Article 3 (Preparation of documents such as the attendance book)

The Bank shall specify in its shareholders' meeting notices the time during which
attendance registrations for shareholders, solicitors and proxies (collectively
"shareholders") will be accepted, the place to register for attendance, and other
matters for attention.

The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as
stated in the preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the
meeting commences. The place at which attendance registrations are accepted shall
be clearly marked and a sufficient number of suitable personnel assigned to handle
the registrations. For virtual shareholders' meetings, shareholders may begin to
register on the virtual meeting platform 30 minutes before the meeting starts.
Shareholders completing registration will be deemed as attend the shareholders'
meeting in person.

Shareholders shall attend shareholders' meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in
cards, or other certificates of attendance. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms shall
also bring identification documents for verification.

The Bank shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to sign,
or attending shareholders or proxies may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing
n.

The Bank shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda book,
annual report, attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and supplemental

_43 -



meeting materials. Where there is an election case, pre-printed ballots shall also be
furnished.

When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be represented
by more than one representative at a shareholders' meeting. When a juristic person
1s appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to represent it in
the meeting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, shareholders wishing to attend the
meeting online shall register with the Bank two days before the meeting date.

In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, the Bank shall upload the meeting
agenda book, annual report and other meeting materials to the virtual meeting
platform at least 30 minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this information
disclosed until the end of the meeting.

Article 4 (Principles for the convening venue and time)

The venue for a shareholders' meeting shall be the premises of the Bank, or a place
easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders' meeting. The
meeting may begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full
consideration shall be given to the opinions of the independent directors with
respect to the place and time of the meeting.

The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall not apply when the Bank
convenes a virtual shareholders' meeting. However, both the chair and secretary
shall be in the same location, and the chair shall declare the address of their
location when the meeting is called to order.

Article 4-1

To convene a virtual shareholders' meeting, the Bank shall include the follow

particulars in the shareholders' meeting notice:

1. How shareholders attend the virtual meeting and exercise their rights.

2. Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the virtual
meeting is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure
events, at least covering the following particulars:

(1) To what time the meeting is postponed or from what time the meeting will
resume if the above obstruction continues and cannot be removed, and the
date to which the meeting is postponed or on which the meeting will resume.

(2) Shareholders not having registered to attend the affected virtual shareholders'
meeting shall not attend the postponed or resumed session.

(3) In case of a hybrid shareholders' meeting, when the virtual meeting cannot
be continued, if the total number of shares represented at the meeting, after
deducting those represented by shareholders attending the virtual
shareholders' meeting online, meets the minimum legal requirement for a
shareholder meeting, then the shareholders' meeting shall continue. The
shares represented by shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall
be counted towards the total number of shares represented by shareholders
present at the meeting, and the shareholders attending the virtual meeting
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online shall be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on meeting
agenda of that shareholders' meeting.
(4) Actions to be taken if the outcome of all proposals have been announced and
extraordinary motion has not been carried out.
3. To convene a virtual shareholders' meeting, appropriate alternative measures
available to shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual shareholders'
meeting online shall be specified.

Article 5 (Calculation for the number of shares in attendance and the meeting)
Attendance at shareholders' meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of
shares. The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the
shares indicated by the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in, and the shares
checked in on the virtual meeting platform, plus the number of shares whose
voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronically.

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time and disclose
information concerning the number of nonvoting shares and number of shares
represented by shareholders attending the meeting. If the attending shareholders do
not represent a majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may
announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such postponements,
for a combined total of no more than one hour, may be made. If the quorum is not
met after two postponements and the attending shareholders still represent less than
one third of the total number of issued shares, the chair shall declare the meeting
adjourned. In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, the Bank shall also
declare the meeting adjourned at the virtual meeting platform.

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, but the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total
number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted upon receiving
consent from the majority attending shareholders' voting rights pursuant to Article
175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders shall be notified of the
tentative resolution and another shareholders' meeting shall be convened within
one month. In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, shareholders intending
to attend the meeting online shall re-register to the Bank in accordance with Article
3.

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a
majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative
resolution for a vote by the shareholders' meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the
Company Act.

Article 6 (Discussion of proposals)

If a shareholders' meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting
agenda shall be set by the board of directors. Votes shall be cast on each separate
proposal in the agenda (including extraordinary motions and amendments to the
original proposals set out in the agenda). The meeting shall proceed in the order set
by the agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders'
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meeting.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a
shareholders' meeting convened by a party with the power to convene that is not
the board of directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of
deliberation on the meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including
extraordinary motions), except by a resolution of the shareholders' meeting. If the
chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the Rules, a new chair shall be
elected in accordance with statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the
votes represented by the attending shareholders, and then continue the meeting.
The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and
discussion of proposals and of amendments or extraordinary motions put forward
by the shareholders; when the chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been
discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chair may announce the discussion
closed and call for a vote, and schedule sufficient time for voting.

Article 7 (Documentation of a shareholders' meeting by audio or video)

The Bank, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations,
shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration
procedure, the proceedings of the shareholders' meeting, and the voting and vote
counting procedures.

The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least one
year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the
Company Act, the recording shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.
Where a shareholders' meeting is held online, the Bank shall keep records of
shareholder registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes cast and results
of votes counted by the Bank, and continuously audio and video record, without
interruption, the proceedings of the virtual meeting from beginning to end.

The information and audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall be
properly kept by the Bank during the entirety of its existence, and copies of the
audio and video recording shall be provided to and kept by the party appointed to
handle matters of the virtual meeting.

Article 8 (The chair and non-voting participants of a shareholders' meeting)
If a shareholders' meeting 1s convened by the board of directors, the meeting shall
be chaired by the chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on
leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the chairperson, the
chairperson shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as chair. Where the
chairperson does not make such a designation, the managing directors shall select
from among themselves one person to serve as chair.

When a managing director serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, the managing director shall be one who has held that position for six
months or more and who understands the financial and business conditions of the
Bank.
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It is advisable that shareholders' meetings convened by the board of directors be
attended by a majority of the directors, and at least one member of each functional
committee on behalf of the committee. The attendance shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes.

If a shareholders' meeting 1s convened by a party with power to convene but other
than the board of directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When
there are two or more such convening parties, they shall mutually select a chair
from among themselves.

The Bank may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons
retained by it to attend a shareholders' meeting in a non-voting capacity.

Article 9 (Shareholder speech)

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the
subject of the speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card
number), and account name. The order in which shareholders speak will be set by
the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not
actually speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech
does not correspond to the subject given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content
shall prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice
on the same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the
shareholder's speech violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the
chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or
interrupt unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the
shareholder that has the floor; the chair shall stop any violation.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a
shareholders' meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on
the same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or
direct relevant personnel to respond.

Where a virtual shareholders' meeting is convened, shareholders attending the
virtual meeting online may raise questions in writing at the virtual meeting
platform from the chair declaring the meeting open until the chair declaring the
meeting adjourned. No more than two questions for the same proposal may be
raised. Each question shall contain no more than 200 words. The regulations in
paragraphs 1 to 6 do not apply.

Article 10 (Voting, vote monitoring, and recusal system for related parties)
Voting at a shareholders' meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares.
With respect to resolutions of shareholders' meetings, the number of shares held by
a shareholder with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total
number of issued shares.
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When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is
the likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests of the Bank,
that shareholder may not vote on that item, and may not exercise voting rights as
proxy for any other shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the
preceding paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented
by attending shareholders.

Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, if a shareholder has engaged a
proxy to attend the shareholders' meeting, when one person is concurrently
appointed as proxy by two or more shareholders, the voting rights represented by
that proxy may not exceed three percent of the voting rights represented by the
total number of issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in
excess of that percentage shall not be included in the calculation.

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the
shares are restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179,
paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

When the Bank holds a shareholder meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights
by electronic means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by correspondence.
When voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronic means, the
method of exercise shall be specified in the shareholders' meeting notice. A
shareholder exercising voting rights by correspondence or electronic means will be
deemed to have attended the meeting in person, but to have waived his/her rights
with respect to the extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals of
that meeting.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic
means under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to
the Bank before two days before the date of the shareholders' meeting. When
duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail,
except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic
means, in the event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders' meeting in
person, a written declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already exercised
under the preceding paragraph shall be made known to the Bank, by the same
means by which the voting rights were exercised, before two business days before
the date of the shareholders' meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted after
that time, the voting rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic
means shall prevail. When a shareholder has exercised voting rights both by
correspondence or electronic means and by appointing a proxy to attend a
shareholders' meeting, the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall
prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Bank's articles of
association, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a
majority of the voting rights represented by the attending shareholders. At the time
of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first
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announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending
shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders. After the conclusion of the
meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on the
numbers of votes for and against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered
into the MOPS.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present
the amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide
the order in which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed,
the other proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be
required.

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be
appointed by the chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders
of the Bank. Vote counting for meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in
public at the place of the shareholders' meeting. Immediately after vote counting
has been completed, the results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the
numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a record made of
the vote.

When the Bank convenes a virtual shareholders' meeting, after the chair declares
the meeting open, shareholders attending the meeting online shall cast votes on
proposals and elections on the virtual meeting platform before the chair announces
the voting session ends or will be deemed abstained from voting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, votes shall be counted at once after
the chair announces the voting session ends, and results of votes and elections shall
be announced immediately.

When the Bank convenes a hybrid shareholders' meeting, if shareholders who have
registered to attend the meeting online in accordance with Article 3 decide to
attend the physical shareholders' meeting in person, they shall revoke their
registration two days before the shareholders' meeting in the same manner as they
registered. If their registration is not revoked within the time limit, they may only
attend the shareholders' meeting online.

When shareholders exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means,
unless they have withdrawn the declaration of intent and attended the shareholders'
meeting online, except for extraordinary motions, they will not exercise voting
rights on the original proposals or make any amendments to the original proposals
or exercise voting rights on amendments to the original proposal.

Article 11 (Maintaining order at the meeting place)

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders' meeting shall wear
identification cards or arm bands.

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at
the meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the
meeting place, they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing the word
"Proctor."

At the place of a shareholders' meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through
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any device other than the public address equipment set up by the Bank, the chair
may prevent the shareholder from so doing.

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's
correction, obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair
may direct the proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from the
meeting.

Article 12 (Delegation and authorization principles for shareholders)

For each shareholders' meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the
meeting by providing the proxy form issued by the Bank and stating the scope of
the proxy's authorization.

A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any
given shareholders' meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to the Bank before
five days before the date of the shareholders' meeting. When duplicate proxy forms
are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail unless a declaration is made to
cancel the previous proxy appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to the Bank, if the shareholder intends to
attend the meeting in person or online, or to exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronically, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be
submitted to the Bank before two business days before the meeting date. If the
cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the
proxy shall prevail.

Article 13 (Public disclosure)

On the day of a shareholders' meeting, the Bank shall compile in the prescribed
format a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through
solicitation, the number of shares represented by proxies and the number of shares
represented by shareholders attending the meeting by correspondence or electronic
means, and shall make an express disclosure of the same at the place of the
shareholders' meeting. In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, the Bank
shall upload the above meeting materials to the virtual meeting platform 30
minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this information disclosed until the end
of the meeting.

During the Bank's virtual shareholders' meeting, when the meeting is called to
order, the total number of shares represented at the meeting shall be disclosed on
the virtual meeting platform. The same shall apply whenever the total number of
shares represented at the meeting and a new tally of votes is released during the
meeting.

If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders' meeting constitute material
information under applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation regulations, the Bank shall upload the content of such resolution to the
MOPS within the prescribed time period.

Article 14 (Meeting minutes and signed matters)
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Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in
the meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of
the meeting and a copy distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the
conclusion of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be produced and distributed
in electronic form.

The Bank may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by means
of a public announcement made through the MOPS.

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the
meeting, the chair's full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and
a summary of the deliberations and their voting results (including the number of
voting rights), and disclose the number of voting rights won by each candidate in
the event of an election of directors. The minutes shall be retained for the duration
of the existence of the Bank.

Where a virtual shareholders' meeting is convened, in addition to the particulars to
be included in the meeting minutes as described in the preceding paragraph, the
start time and end time of the shareholders' meeting, how the meeting is convened,
the chair's and secretary's name, and actions to be taken in the event of disruption
to the virtual meeting platform or participation in the meeting online due to natural
disasters, accidents or other force majeure events, and how issues are dealt with
shall also be included in the minutes.

When convening a virtual shareholders' meeting, other than compliance with the
requirements in the preceding paragraph, the Bank shall specify in the meeting
minutes alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in attending
a virtual shareholders' meeting online.

Article 15 (Election)

The election of directors at a shareholders' meeting shall be held in accordance
with the Rules for Election of the Directors of the Bank, and the voting results
shall be announced on-site immediately, including the names of those elected as
directors and the numbers of votes with which they were elected, and the names of
directors not elected and number of votes they received.

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed
with the signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at
least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of
the Company Act, the ballots shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

Article 16 (Recess and resumption of a shareholders' meeting)

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time
considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting
temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances,
the meeting will be resumed.

If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the
items (including extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been
addressed, the shareholders' meeting may adopt a resolution to resume the meeting

- 51 -



at another venue.
A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders' meeting to defer or resume the
meeting within five days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act.

Article 17 (Disclosure of information at virtual meetings)

In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, the Bank shall disclose real-time
results of votes and election immediately after the end of the voting session on the
virtual meeting platform according to the regulations, and this disclosure shall
continue at least 15 minutes after the chair has announced the meeting adjourned.

Article 18 (Handling of disconnection)

In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, the Bank may offer a simple
connection test to shareholders prior to the meeting, and provide relevant real-time
services before and during the meeting to help resolve communication technical
issues.

In the event of a virtual shareholders' meeting, when declaring the meeting open,
the chair shall also declare, unless under a circumstance where a meeting is not
required to be postponed to or resumed at another time under Article 44-20,
paragraph 4 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder
Services of Public Companies, if the virtual meeting platform or participation in
the virtual meeting is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force
majeure events before the chair has announced the meeting adjourned, and the
obstruction continues for more than 30 minutes, the meeting shall be postponed to
or resumed on another date within five days, in which case Article 182 of the
Company Act shall not apply.

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as described in the preceding paragraph,
shareholders who have not registered to participate in the affected shareholders'
meeting online shall not attend the postponed or resumed session.

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed under the second paragraph, the number
of shares represented by, and voting rights and election rights exercised by the
shareholders who have registered to participate in the affected shareholders'
meeting and have successfully signed in the meeting, but do not attend the
postpone or resumed session, at the affected shareholders' meeting, shall be
counted towards the total number of shares, number of voting rights and number of
election rights represented at the postponed or resumed session.

During a postponed or resumed session of a shareholders' meeting held under the
second paragraph, no further discussion or resolution is required for proposals for
which votes have been cast and counted and results have been announced, or list of
elected directors and supervisors.

When the Bank convenes a hybrid shareholders' meeting, and the virtual meeting
cannot continue as described in second paragraph, if the total number of shares
represented at the meeting, after deducting those represented by shareholders
attending the virtual shareholders' meeting online, still meets the minimum legal
requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the shareholders' meeting shall
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continue, and not postponement or resumption thereof under the second paragraph
1s required.

Under the circumstances where a meeting should continue as in the preceding
paragraph, the shares represented by shareholders attending the virtual meeting
online shall be counted towards the total number of shares represented by
shareholders present at the meeting, provided these shareholders shall be deemed
abstaining from voting on all proposals on meeting agenda of that shareholders'
meeting.

When postponing or resuming a meeting according to the second paragraph, the
Bank shall handle the preparatory work based on the date of the original
shareholders' meeting in accordance with the requirements listed under Article 44-
20, paragraph 7 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder
Services of Public Companies.

For dates or period set forth under Article 12, second half, and Article 13,
paragraph 3 of Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at
Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph 2, Article
44-15, and Article 44-17, paragraph 1 of the Regulations Governing the
Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, the Banks hall
handle the matter based on the date of the shareholders' meeting that is postponed
or resumed under the second paragraph.

Article 19 (Handling of digital divide)

When convening a virtual-only shareholders' meeting, the Bank shall provide
appropriate alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual shareholders' meeting online.

Unless natural disasters, accidents, or other force majeure events announced by the
Ministry of Economic Affairs occur, the Bank shall at least provide connection
equipment and necessary assistance to shareholders, and specify the period during
which shareholders may apply to the Bank and other relevant matters to be noted.

Article 20 (Taking effect)

These Rules shall take effect after having been submitted to and approved by a
shareholders' meeting. Subsequent amendments thereto shall be effected in the
same manner.
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2. Articles of Association of Taiwan Business Bank Co., Ltd.

Established by the extraordinary general meeting on April 12, 1976

Approved by the Letter (65) Tai-cai-chien No. 15056 issued by the Ministry of Finance on May 8, 1976

The 1st amendment was made by the 3rd annual shareholders' meeting on September 19, 1978

Approved by the Letter (67) Tai-cai-chien No. 23084 issued by the Ministry of Finance on December 11, 1978

The 2nd amendment was made by the 4th annual shareholders' meeting on September 12, 1979

Approved by the Letter (68) Tai-cai-chien No. 24747 issued by the Ministry of Finance on December 24, 1979

The 3rd amendment was made by the 5th annual shareholders' meeting on October 8, 1980

Approved by the Letter (70) Tai-cai-rong No. 13472 issued by the Ministry of Finance on March 26, 1981

The 4th amendment was made by the 6th annual shareholders' meeting on October 14, 1981

Approved by the Letter (70) Tai-cai-rong No. 24142 issued by the Ministry of Finance on November 23, 1981

The 5th amendment was made by the 8th annual shareholders' meeting on September 13, 1983

Approved by the Letter (73) Tai-cai-rong No. 15728 issued by the Ministry of Finance on April 27, 1984

The 6th amendment was made by the 9th annual shareholders' meeting on September 24, 1984

Approved by the Letter (74) Tai-cai-rong No. 17496 issued by the Ministry of Finance on June 13, 1985

The 7th amendment was made by the 1st extraordinary shareholders' meeting in 1985 on June 5, 1985

Approved by the Letter (74) Tai-cai-rong No. 27088 issued by the Ministry of Finance on December 31, 1985

The 8th amendment was made by the 10th annual shareholders' meeting on September 24, 1985

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 7561189 issued by the Ministry of Finance on July 31, 1986

The 9th amendment was made by the 12th annual shareholders' meeting on September 24, 1987

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 770174351 issued by the Ministry of Finance on June 3, 1988

The 10th amendment was made by the 13th annual shareholders' meeting on October 17, 1988

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 780040823 issued by the Ministry of Finance on February 23, 1989

The 11th amendment was made by the 16th annual shareholders' meeting on October 19, 1991

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 810268921 issued by the Ministry of Finance on July 21, 1991

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 811214231 issued by the Ministry of Finance on October 8, 1992

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 810502770 issued by the Ministry of Finance on November 18, 1992

The 12th amendment was made by the 17th annual shareholders' meeting on December 5, 1992

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 821153565 issued by the Ministry of Finance on August 11, 1993

The 13th amendment was made by the 18th annual shareholders' meeting on November 29, 1993

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 832297402 issued by the Ministry of Finance on June 2, 1994

The 14th amendment was made by the 19th annual shareholders' meeting on October 15, 1994

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 8470900 issued by the Ministry of Finance on March 17, 1995

The 15th amendment was made by the 20th annual shareholders' meeting on November 25, 1995

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 85526951 issued by the Ministry of Finance on June 14, 1996

The 16th amendment was made by the 21st annual shareholders' meeting on November 16, 1996

Approved by the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 86092674 issued by the Ministry of Finance on April 9, 1997

The 17th amendment was made by the 1st extraordinary shareholders' meeting in 1998 on May 12, 1998

The 18th amendment was made by the 24th annual shareholders' meeting in 2000 on June 3, 2000

The 19th amendment was made by the 25th annual shareholders' meeting in 2001 on May 18, 2001

Received and acknowledged through the Letter Tai-cai-rong No. 9022900 issued by the Ministry of Finance on June 12, 2001
The 20th amendment was made by the 26th annual shareholders' meeting in 2002 on May 24, 2002

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 09101207880 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on June 19, 2002
The 21st amendment was made by the 27th annual shareholders' meeting in 2003 on June 6, 2003

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 09201255440 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on August 25, 2003
The 22nd amendment was made by the 1st extraordinary shareholders' meeting in 2004 on February 6, 2004

The 23rd amendment was made by the 28th annual shareholders' meeting in 2004 on June 11, 2004

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 093011111210 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 2, 2004
The 24th amendment was made by the 1st extraordinary shareholders' meeting in 2005 on March 2, 2005

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 09401118120 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on June 30, 2005
The 25th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2006 on June 9, 2006

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 09501187220 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on August 22, 2006
The 26th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2008 on June 13, 2008

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 09701181380 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 21, 2008
The 27th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2010 on June 23, 2010

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 09901217300 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on September 29, 2010
The 28th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2011 on June 24, 2011

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10001151580 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 12, 2011
The 29th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2012 on May 25, 2012

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10101116160 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on June 25,2012
The 30th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2013 on June 21, 2013

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10201129360 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 8, 2013
The 31st amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2015 on June 26, 2015

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10601116160 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on August 23, 2017
The 32nd amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2016 on June 24, 2016

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10501158980 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 12, 2016
The 33rd amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2017 on June 16, 2017

The 34th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2018 on June 29, 2018
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Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10701087000 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 18, 2018

The 35th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2019 on June 14, 2019

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10801142640 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on November 1, 2019
The 36th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2020 on May 29, 2020

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 10901098430 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on June 11, 2020

The 37th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2021 on July 20, 2021

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 11001138190 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on September 13, 2021
The 38th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2022 on June 17, 2022

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 11101115230 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 18, 2022

The 39th amendment was made by the annual shareholders' meeting of the Bank in 2023 on June 16, 2023

Approved by the Letter Jing-shou-shang-zi No. 11230146250 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 27, 2023

Chapter I General

Avrticle 1: The purpose of the Bank is to comply with the national fiscal policies,
provide credits for the public and SMEs, and help SMEs improving
their production facilities, financial structures, and ensure the healthy
operations and management.

Article 2:  The Bank is incorporated in accordance with the Banking Act and the
Company Act, a limited liability company named as TAIWAN
BUSINESS BANK (or TBB) in English.

Article 3: The headquarter of the Bank is in Taipei City and may establish
subsidiaries at appropriate domestic or overseas locations based on the
requirements of its business.

Article 4: Except for otherwise required by the competent authority for securities,
the Bank shall publish its announcements on newspapers or e-mail
newsletter.

Chapter 1I Shares

Article 5:  The total capital amount of the Bank is NT$100 billion only, and has
been divided into 10 billion shares with a nominal value of NT$10
each. The Board is authorized to resolve and issue the un-issued shares
in batches.

Article 6: The Bank is exempted from printing any share certificate for the shares
issued; however, the Bank shall register the issued shares with a
centralized securities depository enterprise, and shall be handled
according to the requirements of the enterprise.

Article 7: Shareholders of the Bank shall complete and provide their signature
specimen for the Bank or the shareholder service agent of the Bank for
keeping, and shall do the same upon any changes thereto. The receipt
of shareholder’s bonus or exercising shareholder's rights in writing or
written contact with the Bank shall use such signature as evidence.

Article 8: Transfer of share certificates shall not be set up as a defense against
the Bank unless an application for such transfer was made to the Bank
or the shareholder service agent of the Bank, and the name/title and
residence/domicile of the transferee have been recorded in the
shareholders' registrar.

The entries in the shareholders' registrar referred to in the preceding
paragraph shall not be altered within 60 days prior to the convening
date of an annual shareholders' meeting, or within 30 days prior to the
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Article 9:

Article 10:

Article 11:

Article 11-1:

convening date of an extraordinary shareholders' meeting, or within 5
days prior to the target date fixed for distribution of dividends, bonus
or other benefits.

Shareholder services of the Bank shall be carried out according to
Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of
Public Companies promulgated by the competent authorities.
Application of transfer and change of name for shareholders, reissue
or renewal of new share certificates and other shareholder service
matters shall be subject to service charges.

Chapter III Scope of business

Scope of business of the Bank is as follow:

l.
Il.
1.
V.

H101081 Small and Medium Business Banking.
H408011 Futures Exchange Supporting Services.
H601011 Life Insurance Agency.

H601021 Property Insurance Agency

Scope of business of the Bank is as follow:

l.

Il.
1.
V.
V.
VI.
VII.
VIII.
IX.
X.
XI.

XII.
XI1.

XIV.
XV.
XVI.
XVII.
XVIII.
XIX.

XX.

To accept deposits.

To issue financial debts.

To discount bills and notes and provide loans.

To invest in marketable securities.

To handle domestic and foreign remittances.

To accept commercial drafts.

To issue domestic and overseas letter of credits.

To guarantee the issuance of corporate bonds.

To guarantee domestic and foreign transactions.

To act as collecting and paying agent.

To handle marketable securities agency business, trading,
margin purchase and short sale businesses.

To handle operation of futures introducing broker business.
To conduct warehousing, custody and proxy in relation to the
businesses.

To conduct safe deposit boxes rental business.

To engage in credit card business.

To sell and trade gold bars, gold coins, and silver coins.

To engage in credit activities and auxiliary activities approved
by the competent authorities.

To engage in the short-term note agency business, trading,
attesting, and underwriting business.

To engage in public welfare lottery agency business authorized
by the competent authorities.

To engage in bonds, beneficial securities, or asset-backed
securities trading business.

XXI. To engage in the life insurance agency business.
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XXI1.To engage in the property insurance agency business.
XXIII. To engage in other related business approved by the competent

authorities.

Chapter IV Shareholders' meetings

Article 12:

Article 13:

Article 14:

Shareholders' meetings of the Bank are categorized into annual
meetings and extraordinary meetings. Annual meetings shall be
convened at least once a year, and it shall be convened by the Board
according to the laws within 6 months after each accounting year.
Except for otherwise required by the Company Act, extraordinary
meetings shall be convened by the Board when necessary. Any or a
plural number of shareholder(s) of who has (have) continuously held
3% or more of the total number of outstanding shares for a period of
one year or longer time may, by filing a written proposal setting forth
therein the subjects for discussion and the reasons, request the Board
to call an extraordinary meeting of shareholders. Any or a plural
number of shareholder(s) of who has (have) continuously held more
than half (50%) of total issued shares for a period of three months may
call upon an extraordinary meeting.

A notice to convene an annual meeting of shareholders shall be given
to each Shareholder no later than 30 days prior to the scheduled
meeting date and notice to convene an extraordinary meeting of
shareholders, a meeting notice shall be given to each shareholder no
later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting date to notify
shareholders regarding the date, venue, and reason for the meeting.
The Bank may notify shareholders holding less than 1,000 shares for
the convening notice of the shareholders’ meeting by way of an
announcement.

The shareholders' meeting can be held by means of visual
communication network or other methods promulgated by the central
competent authority. The Bank shall be subject to prescriptions
provided for by the competent authority in charge of securities affairs,
including the prerequisites, procedures, and other compliance matters.

Shareholders may present a power of attorney printed (signed or
affixed seal) and issued by the Bank that sets out the scope of
authorization, deliver to the Bank five days prior to the convening date
of the shareholders' meeting to engage a proxy for attending the
shareholders' meeting when the shareholder is unable to attend for
other causes. One shareholder may only present one power of attorney
to engage one proxy.

Except for otherwise required by the Company Act, when one proxy is
engaged by two or more shareholders in the preceding paragraph, the
voting right of such proxy shall not exceed 3% voting rights of the
number of total issued shares. In the case of exceeding 3%, the
exceeding portion of voting rights will not be counted.
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Article 15:

Article 16:

Article 17:

Article 18:

Article 19:

Where a shareholders' meeting is convened by the Board, the meeting
shall be chaired by the Chairman. When the Chairman is unable to
present himself/herself, the Chairman shall designate a Managing
Director as the proxy. When there is no designation made, a Managing
Director shall be elected among themselves.

Where a shareholders' meeting is convened by other conveners
entitled for calling the meeting other than the Board, the meeting shall
be chaired by the convener. Where there are two or more conveners,
one of the conveners shall be elected among themselves.

Resolved matters by the shareholders' meeting are as follow:

l. To determine and amend the Articles of Association of the
Bank.

Il. Appointment and removal of Directors.

1. To examine the statistical forms and report prepared by the
Board and the Audit Committee respectively. In order to
conduct the examination, the shareholders' meeting may select
and appoint inspectors as required.

IV.  To resolve the capital increase or reduction.
V. To resolve on surplus earning distribution or loss appropriation.
VI. To resolve on other significant matters.

Except for otherwise required by the Company Act, the resolution may
be adopted by half of the voting rights exercised by the shareholders
present at the shareholders' meeting who represent a majority of the
total outstanding shares.

When the number of shareholders present does not constitute the
quorum prescribed in the preceding paragraph, but those present
represent one-third or more of the total number of issued shares, a
tentative resolution may be passed by a majority of those who
presented. A notice of such tentative resolution shall be given to each
of the shareholders, and reconvene a shareholders' meeting within one
month.

In the aforesaid meeting of shareholders, if the tentative resolution is
again adopted by a majority of those present who represent one-third
or more of the total number of issued shares, such tentative resolution
shall be deemed to be a resolution under the first paragraph.

A shareholder is entitled to one vote with each share held. However,
the shares shall have no voting power under any of the circumstances
prescribed in the second paragraph under Article 179 of the Company
Act.

A minute book shall be prepared for the discussions at shareholder'
meetings, and the minute book shall be dispatched to all shareholders
within 20 days from the meeting after being signed by or affixed seal
by the Chairman.
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The dispatch of the minute book in the previous paragraph may be
carried out via electronic or announcement methods.

The minute book shall set out the year, month, date, name of the
Chairman, resolution method, the summary of the discussion process,
and its results.

The minute book shall be permanently preserved, the sign-in book (or
sign-in) of the attending shareholders and the power of attorney for
engaging proxies shall be kept for at least one year. However, if a
shareholder institutes a suit under Article 189 of the Company Act,
they shall be kept until the conclusion of the litigation.

Chapter V Board

Article 20:

Article 21:

The Bank has 15 Directors, of which, there shall be no less than 5
Independent Directors, and the Board shall not be established with less
than one-third of the seat for Directors being taken.

The term of the Director shall be three years; however, where a
government and a corporate shareholder or its representative is elected
as a Director, owing to the change of his/her functional duties, may be
replaced by a person.

A candidate nomination system was adopted for the election of the
Bank’s Directors (including Independent Directors). Shareholders
shall elect Directors from the relevant candidate list thereof.

The elections for both Independent Directors and non-Independent
Directors are carried out at once, with the elected number of seats
accounted for separately.

The professional qualification, shareholding, concurrent serving
restrictions, nomination, and election method, as well as other matter
to be complied with regarding independent Directors, shall be based
on the relevant requirements from competent authorities.

The total number of shares held by all Directors shall comply with
requirements from competent authorities.

The by-election for filling the vacancies of Directors and Independent
Directors shall be based on the requirements under the Company Act
and the Securities and Exchange Act. Regarding the term of Directors
elected through a by-election and the replacement based on Paragraph
2 1s limited to fulfilling the unexposed term of office of the predecessor.

A Board meeting shall be attended by two-thirds of the Directors, and
five Managing Directors shall be elected when receiving the consent
from the majority of the attending Directors among themselves.
Among the Managing Directors, there shall be at least one independent
Director, and the one-fifth of the seats of the Managing Directors shall
be taken by independent Directors. A Chairman shall be elected when

- 59 -



Article 22:

receiving the consent from the majority of the attending Managing
Directors among themselves at a meeting where two-third of
Managing Director present. The Chairman shall be the chair of
shareholders' meetings, Board meetings, and Managing Director
meetings, internally; while represents the Bank, externally. When the
Chairman is unable to present himself/herself when he/she is on leave
or due to other causes, the Chairman shall designate a Managing
Director as the proxy. When there is no designation made, a Managing
Director shall be elected among themselves.

The Board is authorized by the shareholders' meeting to determine the
remuneration of Directors, which shall be discussed in accordance
with the general standards within the industry.

The remuneration of the Chairman shall be calculated by multiplying
the remuneration of the President by 1.25.

Requirements in relation to the retiring employees of the Bank shall
apply to the pension of the Chairman, which shall not be subject to age
and year of experience.

The Bank may enter into liability insurance contracts with insurance
companies for Directors and major employees with respect to
liabilities resulting from performing their duties according to the law.

Functions of the Board of Directors are as follow:
l. To determine significant regulations and rules.
1. To determine and review the overall operating strategies and

significant policies.

1. To determine the business plan.

V. To determine the internal control system.

V. To prepare for the capital increase or reduction.

VI. To determine the establishment, cancellation, or alteration of
branches.

VIl.  To determine the significant contracts.

VIIl. To determine budgets and discuss the final accounts.

IX. To determine the purchases and sales of real properties.

X. To determine investments in other companies.

XI.  To prepare for surplus earning distribution or loss
appropriation.

XIl.  To approve the significant businesses.

XIll.  To determine the appointment and dismissal of major

employees such as President, Vice President, Chief Auditor,
and Unit Heads of the head office and branch offices.

XIV. Matters handed down by the Chairman.

XV. Other functions authorized according to the laws and
regulations and the shareholders meeting.
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Article 23:

Article 24:

Article 25:

Article 26:

Article 27:

Article 28:

When investing in other companies, except for otherwise required by
the Banking Act, the Bank shall not be subject to the limit of 40% of
the Bank's paid-up capital regarding the total investments in other
companies under Paragraph 2, Article 13 of the Company Act.

The organization of the Board of the Bank shall be separately
determined by the Board.

The Bank has an Auditing Department subordinated to the Board and
has a Chief Auditor that manages the audit business of the entire Bank
and regularly reports to the Board and the Audit Committee.

A regular meeting of the Board shall be held every month in principle,
and be held every two months at least. Shall there be an emergency, or
if the majority of the Directors request so, an extraordinary meeting
may be held. Except for otherwise required by the Company Act, all
meetings shall be convened by the Chairman in writing and may send
out the electronic notice upon receiving the consent from the
counterparty.

The Board shall establish the "Rules of Procedures for Board Meeting"
and submit to the shareholders' meeting, so as to improve the operating
efficiency and decision-making abilities of the Board meeting.

To reinforce the corporate governance abilities, the Board may
establish functional committees and the rules for exercising their
functions shall be separately determined by the Board.

For Board meetings, if a Director is unable to attend due to other
causes, the Director may engage other Director as a proxy to attend on
behalf of him/her; however, the Director shall present the power of
attorney and set out the scope of authorization concerning the reason
for convening the meeting.

The proxy in the previous paragraph may only be engaged by one
Director.

Regarding the resolution at a Board meeting, except for otherwise
required by the Company Act, the resolution shall receive the consent
from the majority of the attending Directors at the meeting attended
by the majority of Directors.

A minute book shall be prepared for the discussions at Board meetings,
and the minute book shall be dispatched to all Directors within 20 days
from the meeting after being signed by or affixed seal by the Chairman
of the meeting and the recorder. The minute book shall set out the year,
month, date, name of the Chairman, resolution method, the summary
of the discussion process, and its results, and shall be permanently
preserved throughout the existence of the Bank. The sign-in book of
the attending Directors and the power of attorney for engaging proxies
shall be permanently preserved throughout the existence of the Bank.
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Article 29:

Article 30:

Article 31:

Article 32:

The President, Executive Vice Presidents, Chief Auditor, and the
managers of the departments and divisions at the headquarters shall be
invited to Board meetings as observers with no voting rights.

During the recess of the Board, the Managing Directors shall regularly
exercise the power and authority of the Board in accordance with the
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association, and the resolutions
adopted by the shareholders' meetings and the Board, and the Board
meetings to be called from time to time by the Chairman; such
meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman.

The scope of power and authority of the Board exercised by the
Managing Board mentioned in the previous Paragraph refer to matters
other than the significant matters required to be considered by the
shareholders' meeting or submitted to the Board meeting for
discussion according to the laws and articles of association or
prescribed by the competent authority, and the determination of
business scope other than the Bank's Articles of Association, overall
operating strategies, significant policies, or significant risk
management.

When the Chairman is unable to present himself/herself, the Chairman
shall designate a Managing Director as the proxy. When there is no
designation made, a Managing Director shall be elected among
themselves.

For a resolution at the Managing Directors meeting, except for
otherwise required by the Company Act, the resolution shall receive
the consent from the majority of the attending Managing Directors at
the meeting attended by the majority of Managing Directors. The
minute book shall be signed or affixed seal by the Chairman of the
meeting and the recorder.

For a Managing Directors meeting, the President, Executive Vice
Presidents, Chief Auditor, and the managers of the departments and
divisions at the headquarters shall be invited to attend, with no voting
rights.

Chapter VI Audit Committee

Article 33:

Article 34:

The Bank has established an Audit Committee comprised of all
Independent Directors and the term of the member shall be the same
as the term of the independent Director. The number of members shall
not be less than three persons, and at least one of them shall specialize
in accounting or finance. The functions, rules of procedures, and other
matters to be complied with for the Audit Committee shall be based
on relevant laws and regulations as well as the "Regulations for the
Audit Committee" of the Bank.

(Deleted)
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Article 35:  (Deleted)

Article 36:  (Deleted)

Chapter VII Managers

Article 37:  The Bank has one President, who follows the resolution of the Board
meetings to manage the business, and several Executive Vice
Presidents, who assist the President to manage affairs. Their
appointment and removal shall be proposed by the Chairman and shall
receive the consent from the majority of the attending Directors at a
Board meeting attended by the majority of Directors.

Article 38:  When the President is unable to perform its duties due to other causes,

the Chairman shall appoint one person among the Executive Vice
Presidents to perform its duties after being submitted to and approved
by the Board.

Chapter VIII Accounting

Article 39:

Article 40:

The fiscal year of the Bank shall commence from January 1 and end
on December 31 each year whereas the current fiscal year shall be
given the title of the current calendar year of the Republic of China.
Settlement shall be carried out based on the first half and the second
half of each year. The account day for the first half shall be June 30
while the account day for the second half shall be December 31, and a
final account shall be carried out at the end of the year.
After the end of the accounting year, the Bank shall prepare the
following statements and books, submit to the Audit Committee and
the Board meeting for approval, and propose to the shareholders'
meeting for ratification.
l. Operating Report.
Il. Financial Statements.
1. Resolution for surplus earning distribution or loss
appropriation.
Regarding the statements and books in the previous paragraph, within
15 days from receiving the approval of the annual shareholders'
meeting, the statements and books shall be combined with the annual
report and report to the competent authority and the central bank for
future reference, respectively. The Bank shall also announce its
financial statements and other items required by the competent
authority on the circulating daily newspaper where the headquarter of
the Bank locates or in the manner prescribed by the competent
authority. However, for those complying with the requirements under
Article 36 of the Securities Exchange Act shall be exempted from such
announcements.
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Article 41:

Article 42:

Shall there be general final accounts surplus, the Bank shall allocate

such surplus to taxation payment and accumulated losses coverage

first and then the remaining balances shall be utilized as follow:

l. Allocate 1% to 6% as employee remuneration (accounted for as
expenses).

1.  Allocate 0.6% as Director remuneration (accounted for as
expenses).

Employee remuneration shall be provided in share certificates or cash,

and such resolution shall receive the consent from the majority of

attending Directors at a Board meeting attended by the two-thirds of

the Directors, and report to the shareholders' meeting.

Shall the Bank have any surplus after the final accounts of the year,
after paying all taxes and making up for previous losses according to
the law, the Bank shall allocate 30% as the legal reserve and provide
for or reverse the special reserve according to other laws and
regulations. After such, the Bank shall include the accumulated
undistributed surplus from the previous years as the distributable
surplus and appropriate 30% to 100% of said distributable surplus for
the distribution of the dividends and bonuses to shareholders, which
shall be submitted by the Board to the shareholders' meeting for
resolution.

In order to continually expand the scale and improve the profitability
of the Bank, based on the plan for our future capital budgeting, the
Bank adopts the residual dividend policy to comply with the principle
of distributing stock dividends for keeping the capital required, and
the remaining portion may be distributed in cash dividends. However,
the cash dividends shall not be lower than 10% of the total dividend
distribution. Where the cash dividends distributed for per share is less
than NT$0.1, except for otherwise resolved by the shareholders'
meeting, such dividends will not be distributed.

The Bank is prohibited from distributing cash surplus or buying back
shares under the circumstances set out in Paragraph 1, Article 44-1 of
the Banking Act.

Unless and until the accumulated legal capital reserve equals the
Bank's paid-in capital, the maximum cash surplus which may be
distributed shall not exceed 15% of the Bank's paid-in capital.

Chapter IX Appendices

Article 43:

Article 44:

The Board shall be authorized to institute the Organization Code, Gate
Approval Along the Corporate Hierarchy, and other internal
regulations of The Bank.

Unaddressed matter in the Articles of Association shall be based on
the requirements under the Banking Act, the Company Act, and other
related laws and regulations.
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Article 45:  The Articles of Association was implemented upon receiving the
approval from the shareholders' meeting, and shall do the same upon
any amendment thereto.
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3. Shareholding of Directors of the Bank

Taiwan Business Bank Co., Ltd.

Shareholding of Directors
Book closure date: April 22, 2025

Representative: Kuo-Chung Lee

Title Name Number of shares Shar(?holdlng
ratio (%)
. Ministry of Finance
Chairman Representative: Chia-Hsiang Lee 190,390,731 2.08
Managing Director | Ministry of Finance 190,390,731 2.08

Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Managing Director Representative: Mei-Ling Liang 1,486,465,695 16.21
) ) Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Managing Director Representative: Tzu-Hao Tsai 1,486,465,695 16.21

Managing Director . )

(Independent Director) Xin-Wu Lin 1,039 0
) Ministry of Finance

Director Representative: Shu-Yi Wang 190,390,731 2.08
) Ministry of Finance

Director Representative: Hung-Sheng Yu 190,390,731 2.08
) Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Director Representative: Ho-Chyuan Chen 1,486,465,695 16.21

National Development Fund,
Director Executive Yuan, R.O.C 537,855,378 5.87
Representative: Chun-Hsien Yeh

. TBB Industry Union

Director Representative: Ming-Huei Chen 5,438,119 0.06

Director Che-Nan Wang 18,701,990 0.20

Independent Director |Jin-Long Liu 0 0

Independent Director |Shao-Yuan Chang 0 0

Independent Director |Yung-Cheng Chuang 0 0

Independent Director |Mi-Hsiu Chiang 0 0

Total 2,238,852,952 24.42

Notes:

1.Based on the 9,167,982,876 issued shares of the Bank and according to the requirements under Article 2 of the
"Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at Public Companies," the
minimum shareholding ratio for all Directors shall be 2% (183,359,658 shares). As of the book closure date (April
22, 2025) for the annual shareholders' meeting, the number of shares held by all Directors of the Bank is

2,238,852,952.

2.The Bank has set up the Audit Committee; therefore, no applicable minimum shareholding ratio for supervisors is

applicable.
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